
 

Agenda - Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

Meeting date: 31 January 2019 

Meeting time:  09.15

For further information contact: 

Gareth Price 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEIS@assembly.wales
------ 

 

 

 

 

Private pre-meeting (9.15-9.30) 

 

 

 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

 

   

 

2 Paper(s) to note 

 (Pages 1 - 23)  

Attached Documents:  

EIS(5)-03-19(P1) Letter to Chair from the Minister for Economy and Transport 

 

 

 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

3 City Deals update: Growing Mid Wales Partnership 

(9.30-10.30) (Pages 24 - 38)  

Councillor Ellen ap Gwynn, Leader of Ceredigion County Council 

Councillor Rosemarie Harris, Leader of Powys County Council 

Attached Documents:  

EIS(5)-03-19(P2) Research Briefing 

EIS(5)-03-19(P3) Evidence from the Growing Mid Wales Partnership 

 

 

 

Break (10.30-10.45) 

 

 

 

4 City Deals update: North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

(10.45-11.45) (Pages 39 - 42)  

Iwan Prys Jones, Programme Manager, North Wales Economic Ambition Board  

Attached Documents:  

EIS(5)-03-19(P4) Evidence from the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

 

 

 

Private de-brief (11.45-12.00) 



Ken Skates AC/AM 
Gweinidog dros yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth 
Minister for Economy and Transport 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 

0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Ken.Skates@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.  

Russell George AM 
Chair Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee 

SeneddEIS@assembly.wales 

21 January 2019 

Dear Russell 

At the Committee session on 5 December I agreed to provide further information on the 
following: 

 How the new performance management regime for the new contract addresses the
perceived weaknesses in the previous Arriva Trains Wales Franchise

 Objectives set for TfW in managing the franchise, and how will TfW be held to account
for the performance of the Operator and Development Partner (ODP)

Information on the new performance management regime was published on 21 December 
2018 in the "Introduction to the Grant Agreement" document, attached here as Annex A. 

TfW is held to account by the Welsh Government  through a series of strategic levers including 
the Company’s Articles of Association, the Management Agreement and the Remit Letters. 
Some elements, such as the Articles of Association, are required by law; others help to guide 
the interaction between TfW and the Welsh Government. 

The day-to-day relationship with TfW is overseen by the TfW Sponsor Team and the TfW 
Client Team(s) within the Welsh Government’s Department for Economy, Skills and Natural 
Resources. It is the role of the TfW Client Team to monitor and review TfW’s management of 
the performance of the ODP in terms of its delivery of rail services and infrastructure schemes. 
The monitoring and review activity is carried out on a monthly basis, whereby TfW presents 
its management and performance information to the TfW Client Team for review. Any matters 
requiring escalation from this review process are taken to the Welsh Government’s TfW 
Operational Board, whose purpose is to provide strategic oversight of TfW. 

EIS(5)-03-19(P1)

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Ken.Skates@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales


The relationship between the Welsh Government and TfW will evolve over time and it is 
expected that the mechanisms for holding TfW to account for the performance of the ODP 
will be periodically reviewed and adapted as appropriate. 

Yours sincerely 

Ken Skates AC/AM 
Gweinidog dros yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth. 
Minister for Economy and Transport 

Pack Page 2



An Introduction to the ODP Grant 
Agreement 

December 2018 

Annex A

Pack Page 3



December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 1 

Contents 

1. PURPOSE OF THIS

DOCUMENT 2

2. PROCUREMENT

BACKGROUND 2

3. CONTRACTED SERVICES 3

4. ODP GRANT AGREEMENT –

MATTERS TO NOTE 4

5. KEY ODP COMMITMENTS 6

6. GRANT AGREEMENT

CONTENTS 9

7. OTHER DOCUMENTS 16

8. ENSURING DELIVERY 17

9. PAYMENTS 18

Pack Page 4



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 2 

1. Purpose of this Document 

1.1 The ODP Grant Agreement for the provision of rail services in Wales and the Borders 

is a large contractual document. This introduction is a guide to its key requirements 

and commitments.  

1.2 As a summary document not written with legal precision, this document will contain 

generalisation, which does not precisely describe the content. The ODP Grant 

Agreement takes precedence in any interpretation or specification of obligation or 

commitment. 

2. Procurement Background 

2.1 The Wales and Cross Border (WCB) procurement was for an operator and 

development partner (ODP) to be: 

 Operator for the Wales and Borders Rail Franchise, when it expired in October 

2018, including compliance with new regulations for accessibility of rolling stock 

by 2020. 

 Responsible for delivery of South Wales Metro, with enhanced services, 

integrated transport objectives and ticketing in the South Wales Metro. 

 Responsible for design, management and integration of civil works, electrification 

and rail services on the Core Valley Lines (CVL). 

 Responsible for provision of rolling stock to provide four trains per hour on Core 

Valley Lines. 

 Part of an alliance commercial structure to share risk effectively between 

operator, infrastructure provider, developers and Welsh Government without 

adding excess profit. 

 Part of a structure which can adapt to future demands in the South Wales Metro 

and wider franchise. 

2.2 The procurement formally commenced with publication of a Contract Notice in OJEU 

on 15th July 2016.  The Notice was placed under the Public Utilities Contracts 

Regulations (2016) using the Competitive Dialogue procedure.   

Pack Page 5



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 3 

2.3 With respect to the rail services, the procurement scope and obligation is described 

by the Railways Act 1993 and its requirement for franchising of rail services. 

2.4 The procurement required provision of powers to enable it to be concluded. These 

were as follows: 

 The Welsh Ministers (Transfer of Functions) (Railways) Order 2018 devolved 

certain Railways Act powers to the Welsh Ministers, including the duties to 

franchise services in Wales. 

 Agency Agreement 3 was agreed with the Department for Transport (DfT) and 

provided agency powers concerning English services within WCB and other 

matters.  DfT has not devolved the powers for English services within the 

franchise, therefore a level of agency continues for those routes and services that 

cross the borders to England, including the North - South Wales’ route. 

3. Contracted Services 

3.1 The ODP Grant Agreement was let on the 4th June 2018 to KEOLIS AMEY WALES 

CYMRU LIMITED (the ODP). 

3.2 The term of the contract is for 15 years from the start date of the 14th October 2018. 

There is provision up to twenty six additional reporting periods after the 15 years, 

which the Authority may at its discretion call upon. 

3.3 Some services relating to preliminary design and discovery of the CVL network 

commenced prior to the start date for the rail services and were commenced on 4th 

June 2018. 

3.4 The terms and conditions were contracted within the ODP Grant Agreement, which 

set out the obligations of the ODP under these service categories. 

Rail Services 

3.5 The rail services include all the routes and services covered within the WCB franchise. 

There is specification of required services, capacity, service quality, performance and 

other matters. The terms and conditions, including payments, KPIs, reporting, 

performance management and enforcement, are set out within the ODP Grant 

Agreement.  

Pack Page 6



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 4 

3.6 The ODP Grant Agreement covers operation of the services on the CVL both before 

and after the intended transfer of the CVL assets from Network Rail to TfW, during 

the transformation of the CVL. 

3.7 The ODP has made commitments for service improvement which are summarised in 

Section 5 below. 

3.8 The Rail Services contract terms are based upon the Department for Transport 

National Rail Franchise Terms (NRFT). 

Infrastructure Works and Services  

3.9 The ODP Grant Agreement requires the transformation of the CVL assets to enable 

the establishment of a metro service on the CVL. This requires the provision of 

construction works and services by the ODP over a period leading up to completion of 

the transformation by 2024. 

3.10 Much of the works will be carried out by Infrastructure Delivery Partners (IDPs) 

independently contracted by TfW to deliver the CVL Transformation designed and 

specified by the ODP. The ODP acts as the managing agent for the IDP contracts. 

3.11 The Infrastructure Works and Services contract follows the NEC (New Engineering 

and Construction Contract) model amended to reflect the linked roles of the ODP as 

Infrastructure Manager and Rail Services Operator. 

Infrastructure Manager Services 

3.12 Following transfer of the CVL assets from Network Rail to TfW, the ODP is required to 

be the Infrastructure Manager for those assets to enable the continued operation of 

the rail services on the CVL from the transfer, through the transformation phase to 

the steady state delivery of metro services. 

4. ODP Grant Agreement – Matters to Note 

Infraco and Opco 

4.1 The ODP is delivering these services by sub-contracting to an Operations Company 

(Opco) and an Infrastructure Company (Infraco). 

Pack Page 7



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 5 

4.2 This allows the achievement of some of the synergies of the vertical integration of 

Infrastructure Management and Rail Operations, whilst maintaining the regulatory 

requirements for separation. 

English Services 

4.3 The ODP Grant Agreement covers services within Wales and those that cross the 

border into England. The ODP Grant Agreement does not unfairly distinguish, in 

terms of service delivery requirements, between the English and Welsh Services. 

4.4 There are additional requirements for separate reporting on English services through 

a Borders Business Unit, so that interaction with English passengers and interested 

parties as key stakeholders, can be maintained and enhanced. 

Transfer of CVL Assets 

4.5 The CVL transformation follows and is dependent upon the transfer of the CVL assets 

from Network Rail to TfW. This is planned for late 2019. 

Passenger Time Lost (PTL) 

4.6 PTL is a measure of train timeliness that factors in the expected usage of services, 

providing a measure of the passenger time lost through delay to services across the 

WCB. The calculation is based upon the Network Rail measures of train timeliness 

that feed the Public Performance Measure (PPM), but then applies a calculation that 

includes weighting of service routes. As PTL is developed and applied it will inform 

and encourage decisions by the ODP that seek to minimise the impact of delays on 

the passenger on the CVL and the WCB network. 

Transport for Wales  

4.7 The public brand for the ODP is “Transport for Wales Rail Services” (TfWRS). This may 

be used interchangeably with the ODP.  

4.8 Transport for Wales (TfW) is a company wholly owned by the Welsh Government and 

which has agency powers for the management of the ODP Grant Agreement amongst 

other functions and responsibilities.  

 

 

Pack Page 8



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 6 

Reporting Periods 

4.9 Reporting periods in the ODP Grant Agreement follow railway industry practice and 

are based on 13 four-week periods in each calendar year. The cycle for performance 

reporting and payments follows these reporting periods. 

4.10 Reporting and payments for Schedule 3B services – Principal Infrastructure Services 

and ODP Infrastructure Works use calendar months and not the railway reporting 

periods. 

5. Key ODP Commitments 

5.1 The ODP has made commitments for service improvement which are summarised in 

the following section. As a summary this section does not cover detailed specification 

of the scope of the matters included and which are set out in the documents 

described in Sections 6 and 7.  

Services 

5.2 2019 

 Refurbished trains for the North Wales Metro, including extra seats and power 

sockets. 

 Pacer trains completely phased out and 12 class 170 trains introduced. 

 New train assembly starts at factory in Newport. 

5.3 2020 

 Start of new fare initiatives, including half price for 12 to 18-year-olds. 

 New station will open at Bow Street in Aberystwyth in March. 

 Pay-as-you-go scheme launched for South Wales Metro (rolling out further in 

2021). 

5.4 2021 

 South Wales Metro’s new service from Ebbw Vale to Newport. 

 First of the 148 new trains start being rolled out. 

Pack Page 9



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 7 

 Free Wi-Fi for trains and stations. 

5.5 2022 

 Introduction of Metro vehicles, four an hour will serve Aberdare and Merthyr and 

Treherbert. 

 New station opens at Crwys Road in Cardiff. 

 Seven extra services Shrewsbury / Aberystwyth. 

 Sixteen extra services Cardiff / Cheltenham. 

 Two extra services on the Heart of Wales line. 

 Passengers will be able to board on the same level as the train on the CVL. 

 A new Liverpool to Cardiff service via Wrexham General and Shrewsbury. 

5.6 2023 

 More Sunday services introduced. 

 Metro services on Cardiff City line. 

 Loudon Square and new Cardiff Bay stations open including on street running. 

 New tri-mode (diesel/battery/electric) trains to operate from Coryton, Rhymney 

to Barry Island and Penarth to Bridgend via Cardiff. 

5.7 2024 

 Treherbert, Aberdare, Merthyr and Rhymney services increase to two per hour on 

Sundays. 

 First class introduced on Swansea to Manchester service. 

 target of 100% for secure station accreditation. 

Stations 

5.8 The ODP is committed to the delivery of a significant investment programme in 

stations, to improve standards and facilities for customers, enhance the condition of 

the estate and increase the operational performance and reliability of the station 

estate.  

Pack Page 10



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 8 

5.9 This includes: 

 Full condition survey of every station across the network. 

 Creation of a station asset information model to inform decision making on 

investment plans and investment in station asset management systems to 

improve central knowledge and information on station assets. 

 Creation of a new Station Asset Management Plan and align/enhance processes to 

ensure ISO 55001 accreditation. 

 Design and delivery of a Station Improvement Plan delivering nearly £200m of 

station enhancements, comprising an improvement plan for every station across 

the network, including: 

 Monitored CCTV at every station. 

 Enhanced CIS and new digital information screen. 

 Improved station facilities including additional/refurbished waiting rooms, 

platform shelters and toilets. 

 Minimum of 1,500 new car parking spaces and additional cycle shelters to 

improve customer access. 

 Improved station commercial retail. 

 Improved accessibility through more step free station schemes.  

 Projects at key Hub and Interchange stations to improve ticket offices, 

customer facilities and accessibility. 

 Community based projects with funding to bring disused station space back 

into use. 

 Rebranding all stations. 

 A Green Stations and Art Work fund. 

5.10 The ODP has committed to the following specific station improvements amongst 

others: 

 Chester: improvements to concourse / interchange, and car park. 

Pack Page 11



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 9 

 Shotton: integrate high and low-level stations, interchange and North Wales 

Metro capability. 

 Llanelli: improved environment, placemaking and connectivity.  

 Wrexham General: multi-modal interchange, Placemaking, North Wales Metro 

capability.  

 Abergavenny: enhanced facilities, access, appearance and key Disability Wales 

pilot station for accessibility and inclusive design trials. 

 Blaenau Ffestiniog: new station buildings, as part of local partnership to support 

the Conwy Valley Line, local community, tourism and the Ffestiniog and Welsh 

Highland Railways. 

 Carmarthen: pedestrian routes, cycle zone and tourism. 

 Chepstow: facilities for tourists, retail and coach/bus interchange. 

 Machynlleth: upgraded facilities for Mid Wales hub and tourism links, plus pilot 

station to trial ‘dementia friendly’ design features. 

 Merthyr Tydfil: hub facilities for Active Travel. 

6. Grant Agreement Contents 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

ODP Grant Agreement - 

Front end 

This includes the main terms and conditions applying to the 

entirety of the Grant Agreement.  

Throughout the Grant Agreement where a term starts with a 

capital letter it will be a defined term specific to the ODP Grant 

Agreement. Clause 3 contains the definitions for these defined 

terms and is the first place to look to see what they mean. 

Clause 5 covers the Term of the Grant Agreement, which is 15 

years but can be amended as set out in clause 5. 

Schedule 1.1 "Rail 

Services and Service 

Development" 

Covers the required rail services, setting out the routes that 

can be run, the process for timetable development, agreement 

of Train Plans and other related matters. The Train Service 

Pack Page 12



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 10 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

Requirements are included in Appendix 1 which sets out the 

required train services applicable at each timetable change 

date. Capacity planning and crowding management obligations 

are also covered. 

Schedule 1.2 "Operating 

Obligations" 

Covers daily operating requirements for rail services, timetable 

change and management of special events. 

Schedule 1.4 "Passenger 

Facing Obligations" 

Covers the passenger facing services such as information 

provision, selling of fares, Wi-Fi provision, train and station 

cleaning, publication of performance data. 

Additionally paragraph 10 covers marketing and 

communications requirements. 

Schedule 1.5 

"Information About 

Passengers" 

Covers the collection of information about passenger numbers 

and the counting and the provision of data. 

The Open Travel Data requirements in paragraph 9 cover 

provision of data to app providers to support better 

communication of information to passengers. 

Schedule 1.6 "The 

Rolling Stock" 

Covers requirements concerning the rolling stock. The 

appendices include rolling stock minimum requirements and 

the proposed rolling stock by the ODP for the Term of the 

Grant Agreement. This includes information on capacity and 

facilities. 

Schedule 1.7 "Stations" Covers information about management of stations (that are 

managed as part of the Services) and in paragraph 13 sets 

minimum standards for stations.   

Appendix 1 covers secure station and secure car park 

commitments with date of planned achievement. 

Schedule 2.1 -2.3 - 

"Assets, Leases, Other 

Franchisees and 

Schemes" 

Covers legal obligations concerning asset leases.  

Schedule 2.5 "Transport, 

Travel and Other 

Schemes" 

Describes the required concessionary, discount and 

multimodal fares that the ODP is required to support. 

Appendices 1 and 2 list the specific required schemes. 

Pack Page 13



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 11 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

Schedule 3A – 

“Infrastructure Manager 

Services” 

Following the transfer of the CVL assets from Network Rail to 

TfW and the subsequent lease of the assets to the ODP, the 

ODP is required to carry out the Infrastructure Manager 

Services. These cover all aspects of the management of the 

CVL assets from track bed to signalling to enable the operator 

to continue to run rail services on the CVL. There are specific 

provisions concerning different types of assets and how they 

are managed. 

Additional provisions in Schedule 3A cover the process for 

renewal of assets. 

The Independent Reporter role provides independent expert 

advice to both the ODP and TfW concerning management of 

the assets. 

Please note this schedule is included as a separate document 

from the rest of the ODP Grant Agreement. 

Schedule 3B - 

"Infrastructure Services 

and ODP Infrastructure 

Works" 

Covers the requirements for the transformation of the CVL. 

The Principal Infrastructure Services are the services required 

for the transformation of the CVL to support the enhanced rail 

services. These include progression of the Concept Design 

through to detailed design. The expectation is that the 

majority of works on the CVL will be carried out by 

Infrastructure Delivery Partners (IDPs) directly contracted by 

TfW. The ODP acts as a managing agent "Delivery Partner" in 

respect of these contracts. (Appendix 5) 

ODP Infrastructure Works allows for direct delivery of some 

works by the ODP in specific circumstances. (Appendix 6). 

Additional Infrastructure Services allows for the ODP to 

provide infrastructure services in respect of such matters as 

CVL extensions. 

Please note this schedule is included as a separate document 

from the rest of the ODP Grant Agreement. 

Schedule 4 – 

“Accessibility and 

Inclusivity” 

Covers the requirements on the ODP in respect of accessibility 

and inclusivity.  This includes establishment of a minor works 

Pack Page 14



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 12 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

budget. The Disabled People’s Protection Policy is included 

within paragraph 4, with other relevant matters. 

Schedule 5 – “Fares and 

Smart Ticketing” 

Covers the process and requirements concerning the 

allocation of fares to fare baskets, fare setting and fare 

regulation. 

Schedule 5.9 covers smart ticketing. Note that there are 

obligations concerning smart ticketing elsewhere in the ODP 

Grant Agreement, including in the Service Improvement Plan. 

Schedule 6 – “Rail 

Services Obligations and 

Committed Obligations” 

Schedule 6.1 "Rail Services Specific Obligations" includes UK-

wide obligations concerning co-operation. Additional matters 

included are Delay Repay obligations (paragraph 3) and the 

Borders Business Unit which covers services in England 

(paragraph 4)  

Schedule 6.2 "Committed Obligations" has a table of 

Committed Obligations (COs). These are set at a high level but 

record the key financial commitments made by the ODP. 

 

Schedule 7.1 - 

"Operational 

Performance" 

Covers the operational performance measures for the rail 

services which include:  

PTL - Passenger Time Lost which is a weighted measure of the 

impact on passengers of delays, with a financial remedy;  

Short Formations - which is a measure where less capacity is 

provided in service than was planned in the timetable and 

which includes a financial remedy;  

Cancellations and Missed Station Stops. 

The benchmarks for performance are also included in this 

schedule. 

Schedule 7.2 - "National 

Rail passenger Surveys, 

Customer Report and 

CCI Scheme" 

Includes measures based upon NRPS, Customer Satisfaction 

Survey and Mystery Shopper Survey. The requirements for a 

Customer and Community Investment Scheme (CCI) are set 

out in paragraph 18. 

Stakeholder engagement obligations are included in 

paragraphs 15 and 16. 

Pack Page 15



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 13 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

Schedule 7.3 - "Service 

Quality Regime" 

The service quality management system and service quality 

benchmarks are set out in this schedule. These cover both 

stations and rolling stock. 

Schedule 7.4 - 

"Ticketless Travel 

Regime" 

Sets out the methodology for ticketless travel surveys 

(Appendix 2) and the benchmarks the ODP has to achieve. This 

includes a financial remedy. 

Schedule 7.5 - "CVL 

Restrictions of Use" 

Covers possessions on the CVL after the ODP commences the 

Infrastructure Manager role for the CVL. This includes a 

financial remedy. 

Schedule 8.1 - "Rail 

Services Payments" 

Covers the calculation and payment of Rail Services Payments - 

the grant payments to enable the provision of rail services to 

passengers. Payments are made on a 4-weekly rail Reporting 

Period cycle with 13 payments a year. 

Schedule 8.2 - "Profit 

Share Mechanism" 

Covers the processes and calculations for the profit share 

mechanism so that profits made by the ODP are shared with 

the Authority. 

Schedule 8.3 - "Track 

Access Adjustments and 

Station Charge 

Adjustments" 

Sets out the process where such track access and station 

charge adjustments are made. 

Schedule 8.4 - "Revenue 

Support Adjustment" 

Covers the process and output if the ODP should require 

revenue support. This includes the thresholds, the notice 

period for requesting, and the increased obligations on the 

ODP where revenue support is called. 

Schedule 8.5 - 

"Infrastructure Manager 

Services Payments" 

Covers the payments for the Infrastructure Manager Services 

set out in Schedule 3A. The status of charges can be 

"Emerging", "Firm" and "Fixed". All charges move to Fixed over 

time. Payments are made on a 4-weekly rail Reporting Period 

cycle with 13 payments a year. 

Schedule 8.6 "Grant 

Funding payments" 

Schedule 8.6 covers grant funding payments for the Taffs Well 

depot which is funded using the Residual Value (RV) 

mechanism.  

Pack Page 16



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 14 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

Schedule 8.7 covers other grant funding including rolling stock 

and wheel lathes amongst other matters. 

Schedule 9 – “Changes 

and Variations” 

Schedule 9.1 covers the change process for changes to the 

FTFM (Final Tender Financial Model), the in-life financial model 

and calculating the impact of changes. Thresholds are specified 

for qualifying changes and for the cost impacts of changes to 

Rail Services Payments resulting from changes to 

Infrastructure Services or Infrastructure Manager Services.  

Schedule 9.3 covers variation to the Grant Agreement. 

Schedule 10 – 

“Remedies, Events of 

Default and Termination 

Events” 

Schedule 10 sets out the enforcement rights available to the 

Authority, the default and other events that allow their use 

and events of force majeure which may apply to the services. 

Schedule 11 – “ODP 

Performance Meetings 

and Management 

Information” 

Covers performance review, appointment and processes for 

key personnel, and provision of management information 

including reporting templates and management accounts. 

Schedule 12 – “Financial 

Covenants and Bonds”  

Describes the financial covenants (in life liquidity ratios) 

provided by the ODP and the financial bonding for 

performance, season ticket and infrastructure. This also relates 

to a separate funding deed that describes the managing of 

Opco (rail services) liquidity ratios and parent company 

support. 

Schedule 13 – “Rail 

Industry Initiatives and 

Innovation Obligations 

and Sustainability and 

Ethical Procurement” 

Schedule 13.1 covers rail industry initiatives which includes 

requirements in relation to British Transport Police, suicide 

prevention, Community Rail Partnerships (including 

establishment of new CRPs as well as support for existing 

CRPs), station adoption and other matters. 

Schedule 13.2 covers innovation and the ODP's obligations to 

innovate and participate in innovation initiatives. 

Schedule 13.3 covers sustainability and ethical procurement 

and is divided into a number of parts which focus on specific 

matters: 

Pack Page 17



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 15 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

Part 1 requires a Sustainable Development Plan and Strategy 

to be implemented and progressed through the term of the 

agreement; 

Part 2 covers economic and ethical procurement including 

requirement to provide opportunities for Small and Medium 

Size Enterprises (SMEs) and Thirds Sector Enterprises (TSEs), 

ethical procurement of resources and the Code of Practice for 

Ethical Employment; 

Part 3 covers social matters including, skills, training, 

apprenticeships and Living Wage requirements; 

Part 4 covers environmental requirements including 

biodiversity, waste management, carbon reduction and active 

travel. Appendix 1 sets out sustainability reporting with a 

number of KPIs and targets;  

Part 5 covers cultural matters and additionally includes the 

Welsh language requirements. 

Schedule 14 – 

“Preservation of Assets” 

and Schedule 15 – 

“Obligations associated 

with Termination”  

Schedule 14 has the contractual technical requirements 

concerning assets and key contracts. This then feeds into 

Schedule 15 which covers requirements where the ODP Grant 

Agreement terminates. Schedule 14.6 covers the Residual 

Value mechanism and includes a number of improvements 

that are being funded utilising this mechanism. 

Schedule 16 – 

“Pensions” 

Covers pension requirements including ODP obligations in 

respect of the Railway Pensions Scheme. 

Schedule 17 – 

“Confidentiality and 

Freedom of 

Information”  

Covers the ODP’ts obligations concerning confidentiality and 

Freedom of Information compliance. 

Schedule 18 – 

“Milestones” 

Covers the ODP's milestones for delivery of improvements to 

the services and sets out milestone delay payments where 

they are not achieved.  

Schedule 18.2 lists Authority dependencies and exceptional 

items which are beyond the ODP's control. 

Schedule 18.3 covers the acceptance process for milestones 

Pack Page 18



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 16 

ODP Grant Agreement / 
Schedule 

Summary 

and the appendix has an acceptance process for document 

deliverables. 

Note that CVL Transformation milestones are included within 

Appendix 11 of Schedule 3B. 

7. Other Documents 

7.1 There are documents that are referenced within the ODP Grant Agreement which 

provide more detail as to the ODP’s solution or set out additional matters. Many are 

“working” documents where the initial version is referenced in the ODP Grant 

Agreement but the document will be further developed and maintained throughout 

the term of the Grant Agreement. These include the following: 

Additional Document Summary 

Train Service Requirements (TSRs) 

(Schedule 1.1 Appendix 1) 

The Train Service Requirements for relevant 

timetable change dates. 

Composition of the Train Fleet and 

Rolling Stock Minimum Requirements 

Tables 

(Schedule 1.6 Appendices 1 &2) 

Tables showing train fleets and minimum 

requirements for rolling stock 

Station Improvement Plan 

(Schedule 1.7 Appendix 3) 

The plan for station improvements across the 

WCB network 

Draft Station Social and Commercial 

Development Plan 

(Schedule 1.7 Appendix 5) 

The initial draft plan for social and commercial 

development at stations 

Service Improvement Plan The Service Improvement Plan includes a 

number of service improvements proposed or 

committed by the ODP. The process for 

management of the Service Improvement Plan 

is set out in Part 2 of Schedule 6.3. 

Pack Page 19



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 17 

Additional Document Summary 

Code of Practice for Cancellations and 

Missed Station Stops 

(Schedule 7.1 Appendix 3) 

The initial draft code of practice for the ODP 

concerning cancellations or missed station stops 

for the rail services. 

Funding deed 

(Schedule 12) 

The funding deed is part of the ODP Grant 

Agreement and provides the Parent Company 

Support for Opco to ensure they maintain a 

certain level of liquidity (cash in the company).  

Plan for Network Rail Co-operation 

(Schedule 13.1 Appendix 3) 

The initial draft plan for working with Network 

Rail. 

Initial Innovation Strategy 

(Schedule 13.2 Appendix 1) 

The initial draft strategy for innovation for the 

Rail Services. 

Initial Sustainable Development Plan 

(Schedule 13.3 Part 1 Appendix 1) 

The initial draft plan for sustainability for the 

services. 

Sustainable Development Strategy 

(Schedule 13.3 Part 1 Appendix 2) 

The initial draft strategy for sustainability for the 

services. 

Welsh Language Implementation Plan 

(Schedule 13.3 Part 5 Appendix 1) 

The initial draft Welsh Language 

Implementation Plan 

 

8. Ensuring Delivery 

Enforcement and Contract Mechanisms 

8.1 The Authority has a number of contract management and enforcement mechanisms. 

The key schedule to reference in this regard is Schedule 10 although other provisions 

are relevant. The mechanisms are only noted in this document. The processes and 

circumstances in which they may be used are set out in the ODP Grant Agreement. 

This is not an exclusive list of the remedies that may be available in specific 

circumstances. The contract management and enforcement mechanisms are as 

follows: 

 Milestones and Milestone Delay payments. 

 Warning Notices. 

Pack Page 20



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 18 

 PTL Performance payments and deductions. 

 Short Formation payments. 

 Ticketless Travel payments. 

 Restriction of Use payment (following commencement of Infrastructure Manager 

Services. 

 Performance Plans. 

 Remedial Plans and Remedial Agreements. 

 Railways Act (1993) Section 55 enforcement. 

8.2 Additionally, and as noted with reference to Schedules 7 and 11 in Section 6 above, 

there are a number of KPIs and other service reporting elements that are required to 

be provided by the ODP. These are provided for each 4-weekly reporting period and 

are reviewed in the performance reviews which are jointly undertaken by the 

Authority and the ODP for each service period. The reporting and KPIs are expected 

to be jointly developed through the term of the services. The Authority also has the 

right to specify additional reports should it so require. 

9. Payments 

9.1 The Payments within the ODP Grant Agreement are set out in Schedule 8. Payments 

are divided into the following categories: 

 Rail Services Payment – an annual Grant payment for the provision of rail Services 

calculated according to the provisions of Schedule 8.1. The payment made is 

made every 4 weeks on a 13-period reporting cycle. The payments are made net 

of any deductions and performance financial remedies, as part of Schedule 7, that 

may have been incurred by the ODP. 

 Infrastructure Services and ODP Infrastructure Works – payments for the CVL 

infrastructure program paid to the ODP and IDPs through a payment application 

process (Schedule 3b). 

 Infrastructure Manager Service Payments – payments for the provision of 

Infrastructure Services for the CVL assets. These arise following the transfer of the 

CVL assets to TFW and will be paid monthly. (Schedule 8.5). 

Pack Page 21



 

December 2018 Introduction to the ODP Grant Agreement 19 

 Grant funding for the construction of Taffs Well Depot (Schedule 8.6). 

 Capitalised grant funding for assets including wheel lathes, and some additional 

rolling stock (Schedule 8.7). 

Pack Page 22



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 24

Agenda Item 3



1 
 

EIS(5)-03-19(P3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Economy Infrastructure & Skills Committee  

31st January 2019 

 

Growing Mid Wales Partnership Update 

Growth Deal Road Map and Current Position 

 

Background 

In July 2017, the Economy Infrastructure and Skills Committee invited views on City 

Deals and regional economies of Wales. As part of the enquiry consideration was 

given to the extent to which a similar growth deal approach could be of benefit to Mid 

Wales. 

It was explained that Growing Mid Wales (GMW) is an inclusive regional economic 

partnership and engagement arrangement between the public, private and third 

sector, one of four that cover Wales. The initiative, which was first established in 

2015, seeks to represent the region’s interests and drive forward priorities for 

improvements to our local economy. The partnership’s purpose is to enable the 

region to fulfil its role as the rural powerhouse of Wales. 

GMW is fully committed to developing a growth deal approach for Mid Wales, and 

believes such a regional approach to economic development is vital because of the 

distinct nature of the economy in Mid Wales due to the structural dependence on 

agriculture, the dispersed population, the historically low rates of productivity and the 

high proportion of SMEs. These factors are rarely found elsewhere on such a large 

scale.   

At the time GMW was developing a programme based approach based on the 

significant sector-based opportunities in the region. The focus was to build the 

evidence base for our themes to ensure we can progress (a) bid or bids that could 

support a programme including elements appropriate for a Growth Deal. 

In a national context, a growth deal for Mid Wales would mean a consistent 

approach across Wales in relation to both financial support and devolution of powers 

to the regions.  

Pack Page 34



2 
 

GMW was subsequently invited to prepare a submission for a Growth Deal and work 

has been progressed with partner organisations, the Welsh Government and UK 

Government to take this forward. A successful proposal for Mid Wales would see 

every part of Wales benefitting from a UK Government growth deal. 

 

Current Position 

In 2018 the Growing Mid Wales Partnership commissioned AECOM to complete an 

Economic Strategy paper for the region.  The strategy identifies a vision and the 

priorities for the Mid Wales region for the coming 15 years.  These priorities will be 

driven forward via three themes and eight programmes of projects to transform the 

regional economy. 

Our Vision for the Mid Wales Region is:- 

An enterprising and distinctive region delivering economic growth, driven by 

innovation, skills, connectivity and more productive jobs supporting prosperous and 

bilingual communities. 

The Regional Economic Strategy Three Themes and Eight Programmes are:- 

 Innovative and Skilled Mid Wales 

• Skills 

• Innovation 

 Competitive and Sustainable Mid Wales 

• Business 

• Energy  

• Property 

 Connected and Distinctive Mid Wales 

• Transport 

• Digital 

• Place 

 

One key opportunity for 2019 is to secure a Growth Deal for Mid Wales that delivers 

transformational economic growth for the region and aligns with the wider priorities 

and programme of works that the Partnership will progress via the Regional 

Economic Strategy. 

The indications from Welsh and UK Governments, as well as an analysis of previous 

deal size per GVA and population, suggest a Growth Deal ambition of £200m of 

funding is achievable. 

Previous Growth Deals and the experiences of the North Wales Growth Deal 

strongly indicate that a single programme of projects in a maximum of four themes 

focussed on a small number of strategically aligned economic outcomes is most 

likely to be successful. 

Pack Page 35



3 
 

We are also aware that private sector participation and demand is a major factor in 

successful Growth Deal funding and delivery of outcomes. 

We are currently working through phase one of the process to achieve a Growth 

Deal for the Mid Wales Region.  We expect phase one will take us up to the autumn 

of this year where we hope to receive an announcement for a head of terms.  We 

appreciate this is a very tight deadline but we feel it is better to have a deadline to 

aim for.  We expect phase one will cover the following activities:- 

Timetable/Process - Phase One 

• Confirm Strategic Context (AECOM proposal). 

• Confirm Strategic Governance – including stakeholder engagement. 

• Describe the range of funding routes and confirm which projects should be 

funded through which route – growth deal, sector deals etc. 

• Agree the initial joint projects/packages for the growth deal. 

• Commission Outline Business Case for each project/package. 

• Completion of the draft Proposition Document August/September 2019.  

• Submission in September/October 2019 leading to announcement by UK and 

Welsh Government end October 2019. 

If phase one is successful, we expect phase two will take most of 2020 to complete 

and we hope to achieve a financial settlement for the Mid Wales Growth Deal by the 

Autumn 2020. 

Timetable/Process - Phase Two November 2019 Onwards 

• Commission and undertake Full Business Cases (FBC) for each 

Project/Package. 

• Programme Delivery including monitoring and evaluation. 

Governance 

The Informal Joint Cabinet meeting has previously considered the governance 

options and expressed a preference for a Joint Committee with equal Councillor 

Membership from each Authority, together with the Chair from the Economic 

Strategy Board representing private business.  Both Council Leaders would be co-

Chairs of the Joint Committee; other stakeholders having observer status only.   

Welsh and UK Government officials have informally indicated that this model should 

secure ministerial approval. 

To support the chosen governance option we have established a senior officer 

executive team, which will also support the management of the programme office 

which we are in the process of establishing.  The programme office will focus on 

operational decisions and delivery.  We are also close to confirming our proposals 

for the membership of a private sector Economic Strategy Board.  This board will 

Pack Page 36



4 
 

have up to 10 business people representing the Mid Wales Region, with an 

independent chair who will be a full member of the Joint Committee.  This is a key 

stakeholder group, helping to shape and drive forward the strategic projects for the 

Growth Deal.  We expect other businesses will also participate with the work streams 

on the various projects. 

We have a draft Inter Authority Agreement and we are discussing the roles for the 

accountable body and the secretariat for the Joint Committee.  At the same time we 

have set out draft terms of reference for the Economic Strategy Board and have set 

out the first meetings draft agenda and supporting papers.   We are hoping initial 

meetings for both the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board will take 

place end of January or early February. 

At the moment we are focusing on six themes for potential projects/packages for the 

growth deal.  As explained these relate to the findings from the AECOM paper out 

lining the Regional Economic Strategy for the Mid Wales Region.    

These are the six project/package themes agreed at the last informal joint Cabinet 

meeting:- 

• Business growth:  To establish an innovative and targeted sites and 

premises investment package to act as a key enabler to deliver the Growth 

Deal package. 

• Skills:  To create an innovative and skilled Mid Wales we intend to establish a 

regional learning and skills partnership.   

• Tourism & Events:  To establish a strategic investment programme to 

support the tourism economy in Mid Wales. 

• Infrastructure:  To establish a connected and distinctive Mid Wales through 

interventions in digital and rail and other key infrastructure 

• Agricultural / bio-security:  To develop and maximise Mid Wales leading 

role in the bio economy. 

• Low Carbon Energy:  To ensure the provision of affordable energy for 

homes and businesses in Mid Wales. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pack Page 37



5 
 

Next Steps 

 As mentioned early on in this briefing, we need to build on the AECOM work 

to continue to identify those strategic areas of capability that have the 

potential to deliver as theme candidates for a Growth Deal. 

 Private Business involvement to identify and define the projects/packages for 

the Growth Deal. 

 UK and Welsh Governments review and feedback on the proposed 

projects/packages.  If acceptable then work can commence on the Outline 

Business Case for each project/package to be included within an overarching 

proposal document. 

 Seek support and agreement from UK and Welsh Governments for the 

proposed membership of the Economic Strategy Board. 

 We hope to convene first meetings of the Joint Committee and the Economic 

Strategy Board as soon as possible. 

We are aware that Welsh and UK Governments have strategic imperatives for 

growth deal funding that we must be aligned to:- 

o Private sector demand and backing of projects. 
o Innovation and entrepreneurship. 
o High job creation and economic value (high value, high quality jobs). 
o Decarbonisation. 
o World trade. 
o Achievable by us and unique to us (not more of the same as others). 

 
Business growth will also be dependent on our specific situation in mid Wales as a 
rural economy:- 
 

o We need to create meaningful scale and connection to scale in our rural 
geography. 

o Housing for workforce and future workforce is in the right places and 
affordable. 

o Sufficient low carbon and low cost energy to power business growth. 
o Connectedness of our physical and digital spaces and workforce. 
o The right places and sites for businesses. 
o Access to larger national and international markets. 

 
With support and guidance from all stake holders we are focusing on enabling the 
best opportunities to be developed for the short, medium and long term economic 
growth for the Mid Wales Region. 

Pack Page 38



EIS(5)-03-19(P4) 

 
 
Inquiry into City Deals and the Regional Economies of Wales 
 
Response by North Wales Economic Ambition Board to the Economy, 
Infrastructure and Skills Committee Consultation 
 
The North Wales Economic Ambition Board is a partnership of the six Local 
Authorities in North Wales along with the two FE Colleges, the two Universities, 
the Chair of the Business Leadership Forum and the North Wales Business 
Council.  
 
The Board was established to support the development of the economy of the 
region and has placed considerable emphasis on the successful delivery of a 
Growth Deal for North Wales, which will sit as part of a comprehensive vision for 
growing the economy in the region.  
 
More recently the Board has evolved to become the governance body for the 
emerging North Wales Growth Deal. 
 
The NWEAB welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Inquiry by the 
Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee. We have noted the 
recommendations from the previous inquiry carried out in 2017 and the 
response to those recommendations by the Welsh Government.  
 
Progress with reaching agreement over Growth Deal for North Wales has been 
positive, with both the UK and Welsh Governments having recently committed to 
a financial envelope for a deal, which could provide up to £240 million to deliver 
a range of projects in the region. The projects are targeted at key business 
sectors that have the potential for transformational growth, or which support 
areas where additional capacity or infrastructure is needed to sustain growth in 
the economy.  
 
Since the last evidence session of the committee, a detailed vision for the future 
of the economy in North Wales has been prepared by the NWEAB. This 
document A Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales sets out 
ambitious proposals for closing the gap in economic productivity between North 
Wales and UK average productivity.  
 
The document is available at the following site 
 
https://moderngov.wrexham.gov.uk/documents/s9675/Appendix 1.pdf 

 

Pack Page 39

Agenda Item 4

https://moderngov.wrexham.gov.uk/documents/s9675/Appendix%201.pdf


The Growth Vision sets out long-term proposals for to grow our economy. The 
Growth Deal bid flows from this high level vision and in 2018, the NWEAB set 
out a proposal for a Growth Deal to the UK and Welsh Governments. 
 
https://northwaleseab.co.uk/sites/nweab/files/documents/growth_plan_doc_5_final.8.feb_.2018english.cl
eaned.pdf 

 
Since the publication of the Growth Deal bid, detailed discussions with both 
Governments have been held, to reach agreement over the potential projects to 
be included within a Growth Deal.  
 
The NWEAB has also sought alternative funding for strategic projects included as 
part of the Growth Vision for North Wales. A positive example of this has been a 
successful bid into the UK Government Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN) 
programme. An additional £9 million towards the delivery of a digital strategy 
for North Wales has been provisionally approved, because of the opportunities 
highlighted in the Growth Vision.  
 
In November 2018, the Chancellor committed a financial envelope of £120 
million from the UK Government to fund a deal. In December 2018, the Welsh 
Government matched this amount.  This provides a potential funding envelope of 
up to £240 million for a North Wales Deal.  
 
The list of schemes identified in the bid document is for a larger financial amount 
than has been committed by the two Governments. The total value of projects to 
be delivered in the bid document is approximately £347 million, so there is a 
significant funding shortfall. The NWEAB is currently undertaking a review to 
assess whether scope exists to re-profile expenditure, manage the overall 
programme or identify alternative funding sources for some projects.  
 
In summary therefore, the fact that both Government have now agreed a funding 
envelope for a deal is positive. The sum currently committed is however lower 
than anticipated in the bid documentation and some difficult prioritisation 
decisions will need to be made to identify a package of projects for the final deal.  
Some worthwhile projects may have to be deferred in order to remain within the 
agreed financial envelope.  
 
Governance 
 
The NWEAB has undergone significant changes to its governance structure in 
order to facilitate the submission of a bid. The six Local Authorities have agreed 
to establish a Local Government Joint Committee as a model for the delivery of 
the bid. To this committee, the two Universities and two Further Education 
Colleges, and representatives from the Private Sector have associate status at the 
NWEAB meetings.  
 
The governance models available to the NWEAB are limited to those available to 
establish Joint Committees under the Local Government Act 1972.  The bid so far 
has been developed in partnership with the North Wales Business Council and 
the Universities and Further Education Colleges. An effective partnership has 

Pack Page 40

https://northwaleseab.co.uk/sites/nweab/files/documents/growth_plan_doc_5_final.8.feb_.2018english.cleaned.pdf
https://northwaleseab.co.uk/sites/nweab/files/documents/growth_plan_doc_5_final.8.feb_.2018english.cleaned.pdf


emerged to agree the bid. It is unfortunate therefore that the governance models 
available do not, allow associate partners to become part of the formal Joint 
Committee or to have voting rights in the NWEAB.  
 
An initial governance agreement has been completed in order to submit the bid. 
To deliver a Growth Deal, a further more comprehensive governance agreement 
will be needed.  Detailed discussions are underway for this second governance 
agreement.  
 
In addition, agreement has been reached to establish a Business Leadership 
Forum to challenge the strategy, review and evaluate the projects contained 
within the deal. Establishing this private sector led group, has been a key feature 
of the UK Government requirements leading up to a deal.  
 
The NWEAB will become a formal Joint Committee to deliver the Growth Deal. As 
well as the over-arching Joint Committee it is proposed that formal sub-
committees will be established in the governance structure so that key strategic 
issues such as sites and premises development, strategic transport delivery and a 
potential Regional Energy Body, can be established. The NWEAB is supportive of 
establishing these formal bodies to deliver strategic regional activity, within a 
formal governance structure. Such regional bodies are well placed to lead on 
economic growth, strategic transport, delivery of programmes such as LFFN and 
to coordinate other local authority services to achieve sustained growth. 
 
Effective partnerships with Welsh Government and other bodies should deliver a 
strong regional approach to future development.  
 
Funding Profile 
 
Funding for the Growth Deal by both Governments will be provided on a flat 
funding profile over a 15-year period. Given that the projects will be delivered 
over a much shorter time scale than this to ensure maximum impact for the 
economy, there is a cash flow issue to be managed. In essence, the Local 
Authorities could need to manage the accelerated cash flow through borrowing. 
This scenario, will add to the difficult financial position faced by all Local 
Authorities by requiring them to fund interest payments.  
 
There is no external funding available at the moment to meet these additional 
borrowing costs.  
 
The NWEAB is seeking some flexibility in the funding profile, especially in 
relation to the possible use of increased NNDR from the projects contained in the 
Growth Deal, as a way of offsetting the additional revenue costs that would 
otherwise impact on Local Authority budgets. Additional flexibility to vary the 
flat funding profile would also help offset the financial burden.  
 
Because of the very tight local government budget settlement, the additional 
borrowing costs represent a potential risk to the Growth Deal project.  
 

Pack Page 41



Project Funding 
 
Both governments have now indicated an overall funding envelope for a Growth 
Deal. At this stage however, none of the potentially available funding has been 
allocated to specific projects. Work is underway to prepare a Heads of Terms 
agreement that will outline the financial commitments to specific projects.  
 
There are some difficulties associated with this work, in that the UK Government 
can only fund project that are (1) non devolved matters (2) support the delivery 
of government objectives and strategies.  
 
A number of the proposed projects, e.g. sites and premises development, 
transport connectivity projects and port related activity, cannot be funded bu UK 
Government because the activity has been devolved to Welsh Government.  
Projects that can be funded will need to fit within key UK Government strategies, 
such as the Industrial Strategy, Energy Strategy, Clean Growth Strategy etc.  
 
As the proposed funding profile is balanced between the two Governments, this 
makes developing a final prioritised list of projects more complex.  
 
Additional flexibility in the funding profile by which money is provided by the 
two Governments, would be helpful to help complete the Growth Deal. 
 
Business Case Development 
 
Once the Heads of Terms is agreed, it will be necessary to develop full 5 Case 
Business Plans for the individual projects. We understand that obtaining sign off 
to the business cases has been a lengthy process for other Growth Deals in 
Wales.  
 
The need for a detailed level of scrutiny to provide assurance over project 
preparation, outcomes to be achieved and funding required is recognised. The 
NWEAB Members will wish to be confident of the funding profile and the 
potential for successful implementation of the schemes, especially as the 
financial risk sits mainly with local government.   
 
The costs and time scale to develop full business cases on a project-by-project 
basis, is however significant.  
 
There is a risk that the implementation of the Growth deal could be delayed as 
the business cases are developed in detail.  
 
In addition, the changing economic environment impacts on the individual 
projects. Recent changes such as the announcement to suspend the Wylfa 
Newydd project and continuing uncertainty over Brexit, will result in projects 
changing over time.  
 
 
 

Pack Page 42


	Agenda
	2 Paper(s) to note
	2019 01 22 Letter from Ken re Rail franchise scrutiny 5 Dec - Action points
	2019 01 22 Letter from Ken re Rail franchise scrutiny 5 Dec - TfW report

	3 City Deals update: Growing Mid Wales Partnership
	EIS(5)-03-19(P3) Evidence from the Growing Mid Wales Partnership

	4 City Deals update: North Wales Economic Ambition Board



